
Upper Ogmore

1 15/10/2018

Upper Ogmore Wind Farm
Technical Appendix 6.2: Consultation
Meeting Minutes and Responses
(NRW)



Upper Ogmore

2 15/10/2018

BLANK PAGE



 

Tŷ Cambria      29 Heol Casnewydd      Caerdydd       CF24 0TP 

Cambria House      29 Newport Road       Cardiff       CF24 0TP 
Croesewir gohebiaeth yn y Gymraeg a’r Saesneg 
Correspondence welcomed in Welsh and English 

 

Mr Gareth Lang 
Senior Ecologist 
BSG Ecology 
Wyastone Business Park 
Wyastone Leys 
Monmouth 
NP25 3SR 
 

Dyddiad/Date:  6 February 2018 
 

 

Annwyl / Dear Mr Lang 
 
PROPOSAL:  PRE-APPLICATION ENQUIRY FOR WIND TURBINES 
 
SITE ADDRESS:  UPPER OGMORE WIND FARM 
    
Further to our meeting of the 13 December 2017 at the RES Offices, Cardiff Gate in 
which we discussed the scope of the ornithology survey work and peat issues at the 
Upper Ogmore Wind Farm site and the submission of the meeting minutes, which we 
received on 2 January 2018.    Please see our detailed comments regarding these 
minutes below. 
 
Ornithology 
 
Under point 1.5, last sentence of paragraph one where is says “RF indicated that post-
construction monitoring may be requested”.  Richard Facey advised that we will 
require post construction monitoring (e.g. carcass surveys) to be brought forward. 
 
Under point 1.6 “RF indicated that the need for monitoring will be reviewed following 
the receipt of the OIA”. “Monitoring” here refers to additional survey, rather than post-
construction/operational monitoring. 
 
  

Ein cyf/Our ref:     CAS-51413-P4G5 
Eich cyf/Your ref:   
 
Maes Newydd 
Llandarcy  
Neath Port Talbot 
SA10 6JQ 
 
Ebost/Email: 
swplanning@cyfoethnaturiolcymru.gov.uk 
Ffôn/Phone: 0300 065 3264 
 
 



 

Tŷ Cambria      29 Heol Casnewydd      Caerdydd       CF24 0TP 

Cambria House      29 Newport Road       Cardiff       CF24 0TP 
Croesewir gohebiaeth yn y Gymraeg a’r Saesneg 
Correspondence welcomed in Welsh and English 

Peat 
 

Please find attached legacy Countryside Council for Wales (CCW) guidance 

“Assessing the Impact of Windfarm Development on Peatlands” and general Pollution 

Prevention Guidance which can be found at the following link: 

http://www.netregs.org.uk/environmental-topics/pollution-prevention-guidelines-ppgs-

and-replacement-series/guidance-for-pollution-prevention-gpps-full-list/ 

 

Also, SEPA have good links to guidance including information on peat which can be 

found at the following links: 

https://www.sepa.org.uk/media/136117/planning-guidance-on-on-shore-windfarms-

developments.pdf 

http://www.snh.org.uk/pdfs/strategy/renewables/Good%20practice%20during%20windfarm%20co

nstruction.pdf 

Ecology 

We were not asked to provide wider ecology review as part of the pre-application 

discussions therefore discussions were only informal and formal comment will be 

provided by our Species Team once we receive the formal submission.  We are happy 

that you acknowledged that further consideration will need to be given to any potential 

impacts on Water Vole.  We would reiterate that we will need confirmation of the track 

route in the North East of the site to further understand any potential impacts and 

would also recommend that habitat enhancements for Water Vole are considered in 

the final submission. 

Our comments above only relate specifically to matters that are included on our 
checklist Natural Resources Wales and Planning Consultations (March 2015) which is 
published on our website at this link (https://naturalresources.wales/guidance-and-
advice/business-sectors/planning-and-development/our-role-in-planning-and-
development/our-role-in-planning-and-development/?lang=en).  
 
We have not considered potential effects on other matters and do not rule out the 
potential for the proposed development to affect other interests, including 
environmental interests of local importance.  The applicant should be advised that, in 
addition to planning permission, it is their responsibility to ensure that they secure all 
other permits/consents relevant to their development. 
 
  

http://www.netregs.org.uk/environmental-topics/pollution-prevention-guidelines-ppgs-and-replacement-series/guidance-for-pollution-prevention-gpps-full-list/
http://www.netregs.org.uk/environmental-topics/pollution-prevention-guidelines-ppgs-and-replacement-series/guidance-for-pollution-prevention-gpps-full-list/
https://www.sepa.org.uk/media/136117/planning-guidance-on-on-shore-windfarms-developments.pdf
https://www.sepa.org.uk/media/136117/planning-guidance-on-on-shore-windfarms-developments.pdf
http://www.snh.org.uk/pdfs/strategy/renewables/Good%20practice%20during%20windfarm%20construction.pdf
http://www.snh.org.uk/pdfs/strategy/renewables/Good%20practice%20during%20windfarm%20construction.pdf
https://naturalresources.wales/guidance-and-advice/business-sectors/planning-and-development/our-role-in-planning-and-development/our-role-in-planning-and-development/?lang=en
https://naturalresources.wales/guidance-and-advice/business-sectors/planning-and-development/our-role-in-planning-and-development/our-role-in-planning-and-development/?lang=en
https://naturalresources.wales/guidance-and-advice/business-sectors/planning-and-development/our-role-in-planning-and-development/our-role-in-planning-and-development/?lang=en


 

Tŷ Cambria      29 Heol Casnewydd      Caerdydd       CF24 0TP 

Cambria House      29 Newport Road       Cardiff       CF24 0TP 
Croesewir gohebiaeth yn y Gymraeg a’r Saesneg 
Correspondence welcomed in Welsh and English 

I hope these comments are of assistance. If you have any queries, or if you require 
any further information, please do not hesitate to contact us at the above address. 
 
Yn ddiffuant  / Yours sincerely 
 

Lisa Jones 

Ymgynghorydd Cynllunio Datblygu/Development Planning Advisor  
Ffon/Tel: 03000 653264 
E-bost/E-mail: lisa.jones@cyfoethnaturiolcymru.gov.uk 
 

mailto:lisa.jones@cyfoethnaturiolcymru.gov.uk


Derbyshire Oxford  Newcastle Monmouth Swansea Glasgow | BSG Ecology is a trading name of Baker Shepherd Gillespie LLP

Registered  in: England  and  Wales | No. OC328772 | Registered  address: Wyastone  Business Park,  Monmouth,  NP25  3SR

Upper Ogmore Wind Farm Ornithology and Peat Pre-application Consultation

Weds 13 December 2017. RES offices, Cardiff Gate. Duration 09:45-11:25

Items:

The meeting was requested through Natural Resources Wales’ (NRW)
Discretionary Pre-Planning Advice (DPA) service to discuss the scope of
ornithological survey work and peat issues at the site. A budget for advice on
wider ecology and protected species was not included in the DPA request.

Action

Present:

Leila Thornton, Lisa Jones, Richard Facey, David Reed (present via telecom
for peat discussions only) (Natural Resources Wales [NRW]); Gareth Lang
(BSG Ecology); Chris Jackson, Mark Crabtree (RES).

Introductions & Scene Setting:

Apologies were made on behalf of Rhian Isaac of NRW who was unable to
attend the meeting.
David Reed from NRW (based in Aberystwyth) would be able to attend the
discussion on peat via teleconference.

For Natural Resources Wales:

Rhian Isaac (RI) would continue to be the point of contact at NRW for the
project with support from Lisa Jones (LJ)
Richard Facey (RF) is a specialist on Ornithology at NRW (based in Cardiff)
Leila Thornton (LT) is a Biodiversity Officer at NRW (based in Neath).

For BSG Ecology:

Gareth Lang (GL) has been managing the ecology and ornithology work for
the project.

For RES Ecology:

Chris Jackson (CJ) is the project manager at RES
Mark Crabtree (MC) is the design engineer for the project at RES

CJ gave a brief overview of the proposed development, indicating it was unlikely to enter
planning before April 2018. CJ Indicated that the layout is not final, with possibility of a
reduction in the number of turbines and track alterations owing to various constraints
(including landscape and visual impact).

1. Ornithology
1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

GL outlined the scope of the breeding and wintering bird work.

GL confirmed that all work was being completed in accordance with industry
standard SNH (2014) guidance and generally accepted survey methods (as
detailed in the baseline survey reports).

RF acknowledged that he had received and reviewed the reports ahead of the
meeting.

RF stated that it was good to see that kestrel had been included as a target
species owing to their decline in Wales. RF also acknowledged that sufficient
data had been collected for honey buzzard to inform an assessment.



Upper Ogmore NRW Meeting Record Page 2 of 4

1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

Following the overview of survey effort and results to date provided by GL, RF
asked whether monitoring at the site was proposed. GL said that it wasn’t due
to the low level of activity by target species recorded during baseline surveys.
RF indicated that nearby wind farm sites that had recorded similar (low) levels
of peregrine activity had subsequently recorded a number of turbine collisions
post-construction. GL acknowledged that there are a number of peregrine
territories (both current and historical) surrounding the site, but that peregrine
do not appear to fly over the site (likely owing to the lack of prey).
RF also indicated that there is a potential for waterfowl passage over the site
(based on observations at a similar site (in altitude and habitat) near Neath).
With this in mind, RF indicated that post-construction monitoring may be
requested as there is a lack of understanding regarding actual effects of wind
farms on birds.
GL asked about the setting of the sites at which waterfowl passage had been
recorded, and suggested that there are likely to be geographical differences
and that there’s no evidence to suggest that waterfowl fly over Upper Ogmore.

RF asked whether collision risk modelling would be included within the
Ornithological Impact Assessment (OIA). GL indicated that it would be, and
that impacts on species and populations will further be informed by a
cumulative impact assessment. GL would submit a copy of the OIA to NRW
ahead of formal submission for comment. RF indicated that the need for
monitoring will be reviewed following receipt of the OIA.

GL requested some guidance from RF on the scope of the cumulative
assessment. RF stated that he would look into it.

GL asked whether the baseline data would still be considered up-to-date
given the anticipated submission date of June 2018. RF agreed that it would
be (following SNH (2014) guidance on data longevity being valid up to 5
years).

Summary: RF happy overall with baseline bird survey work. RF
suggested that consideration should be given to monitoring depending
on the outcome of collision risk modelling and assessment of impacts in
the OIA.

GL

RF

2 Ecology
2.1

2.2

2.3

GL gave a brief overview of the survey work completed for great crested newt,
water vole, and bats.

LT indicated that formal comment would be provided by the species team at
scoping, but that water vole may need to be considered further if there are
direct effects on streams within the site.

GL suggested that construction phase checks would be completed and
methods to avoid impacts on water vole would be implemented.

Summary: Water vole is likely to require consideration at construction
phase to ensure impacts are avoided. Formal comment on ecology will
be given at the scoping stage.

3. Peat

3.1

3.2

3.3

David Reed (DR) joined the meeting by teleconference (10:40).

MC stated that peat surveys had been completed, and that a contour map of
peat location had been provided to NRW. MC asked if DR was happy with the
layout provided regarding impact on peat. DR acknowledged that it was
evident that there has been an effort to avoid areas of deep peat. However,
there may be some issues with the tracks between T7 and T3, and the tracks
leading to T8.

DR asked whether T8 could be relocated, and questioned why there were



Upper Ogmore NRW Meeting Record Page 3 of 4

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

3.11

3.12

3.13

multiple tracks leading to T8. MC advised that the tracks shown were options,
and that only one would be needed. MC added that the turbine locations were
restricted by a number of constraints (including geology and radio
interference), but that it may be possible to rotate the crane pad of T8 out of
the area of >0.5m peat.

[MC sent a copy of the most recent layout (with single track to T8 illustrated)
to DR via email during the teleconference]

MC indicated that the current site access options include: 1) a spur off the
Llynfi Afan Wind Farm site entrance, and 2) using the existing access to the
Werfa Masts (which would require widening of the existing track). The first
option would be the preference but depends on the outcome of discussions
with the owner of Llynfi Afan Wind Farm.  The second option would depend on
consultation with CADW [the existing track passes through a Scheduled
Ancient Monument (SAM) which appears to be degraded near to the track].

DR added that the proposed track to T8 should float over the underlying peat
resource to maintain the flow of groundwater between areas of deeper peat to
the north and south. DR added that this could be achieved through use of
larger rocks as a permeable bed to support the relatively impermeable
material forming the track surface.
MC agreed that this could be achievable.

DR asked whether there was any botanical survey for this area. GL stated that
a botanical survey report for the area was forthcoming. GL to issue botanical
survey report to RES and NRW in early 2018.

DR asked if turbine T3 could be moved to avoid the track passing over an
area of deeper peat.
MC suggested moving the track further east to avoid the deeper peat. DR
accepted that this would minimise impacts.

MC asked whether the track between T1 and T2 was ok in its current location.
DR suggested that either proposed route would be satisfactory.
MC stated that he would issue a revised scheme design layout (based on the
alterations suggested during the meeting) with constraints (other than peat)
removed.

DR asked when it would be likely that a fix on the route to T8 would be
determined.
CJ stated that this would depend on the discussions with Llynfi Afan owners
regarding use of that access.

DR asked about the electricity outtake plans.
CJ stated that the wind farm substation is likely to be sited immediately west
of T4 with an overhead line connecting to WPD’s substation at Pyle. It is
hoped that the output could be carried by the Llynfi Afan line, but this depends
on the outcome of discussions with WPD.
CJ added that there is the possibility of battery storage at the same location
as the substation. This may be included in the wind farm planning application
depending on how quickly the grid discussions progress.

MC asked about advice on peat waste. DR stated that peat moved should be
kept wet until re-instatement, not piled too high and kept separate from glacial
till. Peat should be replaced with as great a depth as possible, and not spread
thinly.
DR suggested that he would send on some legacy guidance relating to
impacts on deep peat. LT added that she would send the document through
with further pollution prevention guidance.

LJ indicated that NRW would prepare a formal response to the meeting

GL

MC

LT

LJ



Upper Ogmore NRW Meeting Record Page 4 of 4

3.14

3.15

following receipt and review of the meeting minutes.

CJ indicated that a scoping report for the site will be submitted early in 2018.

Close [11:25]

Summary: The turbine and infrastructure layout has been designed to
avoid areas of deep peat. The location of the site access will depend on
the outcome of discussions with the Llynfi Afan Wind Farm owners. The
grid connection detail and inclusion of energy storage in the planning
application for the wind farm will depend on how quickly discussions
with WPD resolve.












	Technical Appendix 6.2 - Consultation Meeting Minutes and Responses_cover.pdf (p.1-2)
	CAS-51413-P4G5 Upper Ogmore Wind Farm .pdf (p.3-5)
	Upper Ogmore NRW Meeting Record 13-12-17.pdf (p.6-9)
	Upper Ogmore Windfarm Pre app RSE FEB 2016.pdf (p.10-15)

